








 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 1 of 3 
December 18, 2017 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Action Minutes 

December 18, 2017 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End: 7:44 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
Councilor Mark Kronquist Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Brian Quigley  Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor Joe Usselman Janna Moser, Library Director 
 Rich Sebens, Chief of Police (excused) 
 Danielle Wetzel, Police Sergeant  
 Wallace Lien, Acting City Attorney 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Introduction of new Council Member 

 
 

b. Additions to the Agenda 
c. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
Mayor Porter introduced Christopher Molin, who 
was recently appointed to fill the vacant Council 
position. 
None. 
Councilor Glidewell disclosed she was involved 
initially with the Teen Center but is no longer.  

Presentations / Comments from the Public None.  
Consent Agenda 
a. December 4, 2017 City Council Minutes 
b. Resolution No. 971, Extension of Wave Broadband Franchise 

Agreement 

 
Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by 
Councilor Usselman, to approve the Consent 
Agenda as presented. Motion passed 4:0. 

Business from the Mayor 
a. Appointments and Reappointments to Various Committees, 

Boards, and Commissions 
• Appointments 

o Patrick Mulligan to the Parks and Recreation Board 
o Brent Walker to the Budget Committee 

 
• Reappointments 

o Cherie Peckfelder to the Parks and Recreation 
Board 

o Palma Pugsley to the Parks and Recreation Board 
o Alan Kingsley to the Budget Committee 
o Dixie Ellard to the Planning Commission 

 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Kronquist, to ratify the appointments 
and reappointments requested by Mayor Porter. 
Motion passed 4:0. 

Public Hearing None. 
 
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 2 of 3 
December 18, 2017 

Unfinished Business 
Order of Approval for Minor Modification Application 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 

 
b. Council Deliberation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c. Council Decision 

 
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed the staff report.  
 
Councilor Quigley spoke briefly about the call up 
process and where he stands on the issue.   
 
Mayor Porter asked Ms. Shamblen if she’d like to 
speak as she had submitted a request. Mr. Lien 
advised against this. The record would need to be 
reopened and the decision delayed. 
 
Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by 
Councilor Glidewell, to approve the revised draft 
order for the application of Heidi Shamblen (Land 
Use File #09-09/17) as presented. Motion passed 
3:1 (Quigley).  

New Business 
Selection of New City Attorney 
a. Staff Report – Wallace W. Lien 

 
 

b. Council Discussion 
 
 
 
 
 

 
c. Council Decision 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Proposed Resolution Updating Fair Housing Policies 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Discussion 
c. Council Decision 
 

 
 
Mr. Lien reviewed the staff report included in the 
Council packet. 
 
Mayor Porter stated he appoints the Local 
Government Law Group as the Stayton City 
Attorney conditioned upon reaching an acceptable 
service contract with the City Administrator, and 
conditioned upon the designation of Ross 
Williamson as the specifically named City Attorney. 
 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Kronquist, that Council consent to the 
appointment of the Local Government Law Group 
as the Stayton City Attorney conditioned upon 
reaching an acceptable service contract with the 
City Administrator, and conditioned upon the 
designation of Ross Williamson as the specifically 
named City Attorney. Motion passed 3:0 
(Councilor Glidewell abstained). 
 
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed the staff report. 
None.  
Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by 
Councilor Usselman, to approve Resolution No. 
971. Motion passed 4:0. 

Staff / Commission Reports  
Finance Department Report – Cindy Chauran & Elizabeth Baldwin 
a. November 2017 Monthly Finance Department Report 

 
Police Chief’s Report – Chief Rich Sebens 
a. November 2017 Statistical Report 

 
 
No discussion. 
 
 
Brief discussion of changes in statistics.  



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 3 of 3 
December 18, 2017 

Public Works Director’s Report – Lance Ludwick 
a. November 2017 Operating Report  

 
 

Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman 
a. November 2017 Activities Report 
 
 
 
 
 
Library Director’s Report – Janna Moser  

a. November 2017 Activities 

 
Mr. Ludwick provided an update on the annual 
clean-up days.  
 
 
At the Mayor’s request, Mr. Fleishman provided 
information on the Housing Rehabilitation 
program which offers low interest loans to 
homeowners, and will soon also allow for those 
who own mobile homes.   
 
 
Ms. Moser provided an update and review of her 
report.  

Presentations / Comments from the Public  None. 
Business from the City Administrator 
a. Teen Center 

 
Mr. Campbell provided an update on the Teen 
Center.  

Business from the Council Councilor Quigley requested an update on the 
recent chemical mishap at the Stayton Family 
Memorial Pool. Mr. Campbell provided an update.  

Future Agenda Items – Monday, January 16, 2018 
a. Swearing in of New Council Member Christopher Molin 
b. Code Amendment Public Hearing 
c. Rental Licensing 
d. Municipal Judge Contract 
e. Vertical Housing Development Zone 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 16TH DAY OF JANUARY 2018, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
       
Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Cindy Chauran, Associate Accountant 
 
DATE:   January 16, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 972, Extending City of Stayton’s Workers 

Compensation Coverage to Volunteers of the City of Stayton 
  
     
ISSUE 
City County Insurance Services Trust (CIS) Workers’ Compensation Coverage Agreement requires 
passage of an annual resolution by the governing body declaring its intent to cover volunteer 
listed in this resolution, noted on CIS payroll schedule, and verified at audit for Public Safety 
Volunteers & Non Public safety volunteers as provided in ORS 656.031. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The City of Stayton has historically provided workers’ compensation coverage to the City’s 
volunteers under the provisions of ORS 656.031, Coverage for Municipal Volunteer Personnel. 
Subsection (2) of ORS 656.031 requires the City to elect to provide coverage by filing a written 
application to our insurer, City County Insurance Services Trust, which includes a resolution of 
the governing body declaring its intent to cover volunteer personnel.  
 
As part of this program, City volunteers, including the City Council, the various Boards and 
Commissions, Police Reserves and Library volunteers, are covered for workers’ compensation 
insurance provided we follow certain steps as provided in the agreement for workers’ 
compensation coverage. 
 
In December 2014, the Council initially adopted Resolution No. 920, which extends Workers 
Compensation coverage to volunteers of the City of Stayton. Recently, CIS reached out to the 
City requesting we adopt an updated resolution. This revised resolution will repeal and replace 
the previous adopted resolution.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The total cost of workers’ compensation insurance for all volunteers is projected to be 
approximately $1,198, and is included in the Fiscal Year 2017/2018 budget. 
 
MOTION(S) 
Consent Agenda approval. 



Resolution No. 972 - Updating workers’ compensation coverage for City Volunteers Page 1 of 2  

RESOLUTION NO. 972 
 

A RESOLUTION EXTENDING CITY OF STAYTON’S WORKERS COMPENSATION 
COVERAGE TO VOLUNTEERS OF THE CITY OF STAYTON 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Stayton elects the following: 

 
Pursuant to ORS 656.031, workers compensation coverage will be provided to the classes of 
volunteer workers listed on the attached Volunteer Election Form. 

 
1. An assumed monthly wage of $800 will be used for public safety volunteers; 

 
2. An aggregate assumed annual wage of $2,500 will be used per volunteer board, commission 

and/or council for the performance of administrative duties; 
 

3. Non-public safety volunteers will keep track of their hours and have their assumed payroll 
reported in the correct class code for the type of work being performed using Oregon 
minimum wage; 

 
4. Court-mandated community service workers/inmates on work release may be covered for 

workers compensation benefits by the sentencing court. Coverage will be determined prior 
to work inception and stipulated to in writing between the City of Stayton and the respective 
sentencing court. Court-mandated volunteers will keep track of their hours and have their 
assumed payroll reported in Class Code 7720V using Oregon minimum wage; 

 
5. Volunteers at the following public events will be covered under workers’ compensation 

coverage using verified hourly Oregon minimum wage as basis for premium and/or benefit 
calculation; 

 
a. December Holiday Celebration 
b. Annual Job fair 
c. Annual K-9 Run 

 
6. A roster of active volunteers (public safety, non-public safety, and community service 

workers/inmates on work release) will be kept monthly for reporting purposes. It is 
acknowledged that City/County Insurance Services (CIS) may request copies of these rosters 
during year-end audit; and 

 
7. Unanticipated volunteer projects or exposure not addressed herein will be added onto the 

City of Stayton’s coverage agreement (1) by endorsement, (2) with advance notice to CIS, 
and (3) allowing two weeks for processing. It is hereby acknowledged that coverage of this 
type cannot be backdated. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

 
Section 1.The City of Stayton will provide for workers compensation insurance coverage as 
indicated above. 
 
Section 2. Resolution No.920, extending title, passed by the council on 12/1/2014, is 
hereby repealed in its entirety. 













 

Ordinance No. 1015 Amending Awning Standards and the Color Palette for Downtown Buildings Page 2 of 2 

c) Awnings shall fit within the window bays either above the main glass or the transom light) so as not 
to obscure or distract from significant architectural features. 

d) The color of the awning shall be compatible and attractive with its attached building. 

e) Lighting which provides illumination to the sidewalk and signage is required from dusk until 
midnight. 

f) Awnings shall be a minimum of eight feet above the sidewalk.  

Section 2.  Downtown Color Palette Amended.  Section 17.20.220.3.g.4) is hereby amended as 
follows: 

4) Predominant colors shall be earth tones, defined as shades of green, red, gray, brown and 
yellow with a light reflecting value of no less than 15 or no more than 50% or less.  Table 
17.20.220.1 illustrates acceptable earth tone colors.  Pastel tones, defined as any hue with a 
shade of 60% or more, may be used as accent and trim.  Bright colors are prohibited. A 
palette of approved colors shall be maintained in the office of the Planning and 
Development Department for reference.   

a) Contrasting colors shall be used to accentuate and highlight trim, windows, and other 
building features, and are exempt from the color palette and light reflecting values 
required for the body of the building.  The City Planner shall approve the combination 
of colors used for body and trim as consistent with the overall theme desired for the 
downtown area. 

b) Buildings on the National Register of Historic Places shall be exempt from these 
requirements. 

Section 3.  Table 17.20.220.1 Deleted.  Table 17.20.220.1 is hereby deleted from the Code. 

Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall not become effective until the 30th day after adoption 
by the Stayton City Council and execution by the Mayor, or a representative of the Mayor.  In the 
event of a timely appeal to LUBA, this Ordinance shall not become effective until the LUBA appeal is 
finally resolved, including any appeals from the decision of LUBA. 

Section 5.  A copy of this Ordinance shall be furnished to the State of Oregon, Department of Land 
Conservation and Development forthwith. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 16th day of January, 2018.  

CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed: ____________, 2018 BY: _______________________________ 
 Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

Signed: ____________, 2018 ATTEST: _______________________________ 
 Keith D. Campbell, 
 City Administrator 

 



 
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: January 16, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution Establishing Residential Rental 
Registration Fee 

  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is consideration of adoption of resolution establishing an 
annual residential rental registration fee. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

In November 2016, the City Council enacted Ordinance 1000 which established the Stayton 
Rental Housing Code.  Section 15.06.120 of the Code imposes an annual fee, to be established 
by Council Resolution, for each dwelling unit covered by a rental agreement.   

The City Council’s adopted Goals call for exploration of a licensing program for rental 
properties.  There was little guidance provided to staff with adoption of the Council Goal.  Staff 
is open to the ideas brought forward by Council members. 

Resolution 969 was presented to the City Council in late November.  Council members wanted 
some alternative fee structures presented for consideration. 

ANALYSIS 

This year, the City increased the resources dedicated to property management and code 
enforcement. 

Resolution 969 would establish the requirement for owners of residential rental properties to 
register their units with the Finance Department, and establish a $10.00 per unit annual fee.   In 
accordance with the policy established by Code, the penalty for late payment of the fee is 
$75.00. 

A rough estimate of the number of rental units covered by the registration and fee 
requirement, the suggested fee would raise approximate $12,000 per year. 

Staff envisions a more complete residential rental housing program would involve periodic 
inspections of rental units to assure that they meet the standards in the Code.  The annual fee 
would support the inspection program. 



 
 

Staff researched the fee structure in a number of other Oregon cities for residential rental 
licenses or registrations.  The sheet attached to this memorandum presents the results of that 
research.  There is wide variation in the fees charged by cities in the state.  Many cities that 
charge an annual fee to the owners of residential rental property do so through their general 
business license program and the fee is not dedicated towards any program.  Some cities have a 
graduated fee based on the number of units licensed.  Some cities have a graduated fee based 
on the number of units at an address.  Others have a flat fee for being a landlord, whether you 
have one unit or many.  There is no other city that varies the fee based on the value of the unit 
or amount of rent charged. 

From the initial research staff has completed it is estimated that the three property owners 
with the largest number of rental units in the City own 78, 61, and 56 rental units. 

Draft Resolution 969 has been amended since its initial presentation to the City Council in 
November, to push back the dates that payment of the fee is due and penalties would accrue, 
reflecting the two-month delay in adoption of the resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends adoption of Resolution 969 as presented.   

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve Resolution 969 

Move to approve Resolution 969 as presented. 

2. Approve Resolution 969 with modifications  

Move to approve Resolution 969 with the following changes …  

3. Return Resolution 969 to staff for modification.  

Move to direct staff to modify Resolution 969 to …and present a revised resolution to the 
City Council at the January 29, 2018 meeting. 

4. Take no Action.  

No motion necessary. 

 



Residential Rental Licensing Fees in Oregon Cities 

 

Tualatin $10/unit 

Gresham Fee based on number of units on a property 
First 2 $55/unit 
Next 3-12 $50/unit 
Next 13-100 $45/unit 
Next 101-200 $40/unit 
Next 201+ $35/unit 

Eugene $10/unit 

Medford $0/ unit for landlords with 1 unit 
 $40 plus $1/unit for landlords with more than 1 unit 

Harrisburg* 1-10 units $10/unit 
 11 or more units $110 

Corvallis $14/unit 

Beaverton* 2 or fewer units $0 
 3-40 units $75 
 More than 40 units $1.25/unit 

Milwaukie* $125 for owners of single family homes or duplexes 
 $125 per location for owners of multi-family dwellings and apartment complexes 

Forest Grove* $27.50 per landlord 

Hillsboro* First 3 units $105 
 Each additional unit $5 
 Maximum fee $725 

Coos Bay* 1-5 units $15 
 6-12 units $15 plus $2.50 per unit in excess of 5 units 
 Over 12 units $35 plus $1.50 per unit in excess of 12 units 

Salem 1-2 units on a lot no license required 
 $5 application fee 
 $12.50 processing fee 
 $2.50 - $5 automation surcharge 
 3-10 units $14/unit 
 11-60 units $13.50/unit 
 61+ units $13/unit 

 

 

 

 - business license, not a residential rental license 



 

  
Resolution No. 969 – Resolution establishing residential rental unit registration and fee 

RESOLUTION NO. 969  
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING AN ANNUAL RESIDENTIAL RENTAL FEE, 
PROCEDURES FOR PAYMENT OF THE FEE AND PENALTIES FOR 

NONPAYMENT OF THE FEE 

 WHEREAS, Stayton Municipal Code (SMC) Section 15.06.120.1 imposes an annual fee for each 
dwelling unit covered by a rental agreement, the amount of the fee to be established by Council 
Resolution; 

 WHEREAS, SMC Section 15.06.12.02 exempts certain dwelling unit types from payment of the 
annual fee; 

 WHEREAS, SMC Section 15.06.120.5 authorizes a penalty for nonpayment of the annual fee; 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 

Section 1. Residential Rental Unit Registration Required.  Each owner of a dwelling unit with a 
rental agreement, as those terms are defined by SMC Section 15.06.080, shall register the 
dwelling unit with the Finance Department.  The Finance Department shall prepare a 
Residential Rental Unit Registration Form to be used and shall notify in writing the owners 
of property of the necessity to file a completed registration form. 

Section 2. Establishment of Annual Residential Rental Fee. The Stayton City Council does hereby 
establish an annual fee of $10 per unit for each rental unit, except units exempt from 
payment of the fee under SMC Section 15.06.120.2.  The fee shall be due and payable no 
later than March 31 of each calendar year. 

Section 3. Establishment of Penalty for non-payment of annual fee. The Stayton City Council does 
hereby establish the penalty for failure to pay the annual fee by June 1 of each year as $75 
per rental unit. 

 
This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption by the Stayton City Council. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 16th day of January, 2018. 
 
 CITY OF STAYTON 
 
Date:_______________, 2018  By: ____________________________________ 
  Henry A Porter, Mayor 
 
Date:_______________, 2018  Attest:____________________________________ 
  Keith D Campbell, City Administrator 
 
 
 



 
Appointment of Council President  Page 1 of 1  
January 16, 2018 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
 
DATE:   January 16, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  Appointment of Council President 
  
  
Per the City of Stayton Charter, the Council must elect a president from its membership at the 
first meeting each year. The president presides in the absence of the mayor and acts as mayor 
when the mayor is unable to perform duties. It should be noted that when the president is 
acting as mayor, he / she retains a vote but does not have a tie vote or authority to require 
reconsideration of ordinances.  
          
MOTION(S) 
 
1) Motion to appoint Councilor     as Council President for 2018. 



 
Appointment of Council Liaisons to Boards and Committees Page 1 of 1  
January 16, 2018 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
 
DATE:   January 16, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  Appointment of Council Liaisons to Boards and Committees 
  
  
Per Resolution No. 809, City Council Rules, the Mayor may appoint a Council member to serve 
as a non-voting representative to any City board, committee, or commission (with the 
exception of the Planning Commission due to the potential for an individual Council member to 
be challenged regarding ex-parte contacts). 
 
Typically, the Mayor requests that council members volunteer to serve as a liaison to several 
different boards and committees which include: 
 

• Adaptive Management Group (AMG) 
• North Santiam School District Board 
• Parks and Recreation Board (Councilor Kronquist) 
• Regional Transportation Advisory Committee (SRAC) (Mayor Porter) 
• Library Board (Councilor Glidewell) 
• Santiam Communication Council (Councilor Quigley) 
• Public Safety Commission (Councilor Usselman) 
• Marion County Veterans Task Force (Councilor Quigley) 

         
MOTION(S) 
 
1) Motion to appoint Councilor      as the Council liaison to   . 











 

City Council Staff Report 
Vertical Housing Development Zone  Page 1 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: January 16, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Supporting Downtown Development through 
Establishment of a Vertical Housing Development Zone 

  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is whether to establish a Vertical Housing Development Zone 
in the downtown area. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The Downtown Transportation and Revitalization Plan of the Stayton Comprehensive Plan 
suggests a number of implementation measures to assist with the revitalization of the 
Downtown area, of which a Vertical Housing Development Zone (VHDZ) is one. 

A Vertical Housing Development Zone provides a partial property tax exemption for 
development projects that are multistory and have a mix of residential and commercial uses.  
Staff has had some preliminary discussions with a party about the construction of the multi-
story mixed use building in the downtown area.  Establishment of a Vertical Housing 
Development Zone by the City would serve as an incentive to spur this type of development, 
envisioned by the adopted Downtown Plan. 

ANALYSIS 

The establishment and operation of a VHDZ is controlled by ORS 307.841 to 307.867 and 
establishment of a VHDZ provides the opportunity for a partial property tax exemption in areas 
designated by communities for the development of multi-story buildings that contain both 
commercial uses and residential dwellings. 

The exemption varies in accordance with the number of residential floors on a project with a 
maximum property tax exemption of 80 percent for a 10 year period. An additional property tax 
exemption on the land may be given if some or all of the residential housing is for low-income 
persons (80 percent of area median income or below).  The amount of the exemption depends 
on the number of stories in the building that are larger than 500 square feet.  Essentially, for 
each story the property is granted a 20% exemption on the assessed value of the 



 

City Council Staff Report 
Vertical Housing Development Zone  Page 2 

improvements.  The assessed value of land is not impacted by the exemption.  The exemption is 
capped at 80% of the value of the improvements.  The exemption is available for both new 
construction and renovation of existing structures.  To qualify, a renovation must increase the 
value of the existing structure by 20% or more. 

This year, the Legislative Assembly enacted Chapter 326 of the Laws of 2017 which changed the 
process for designation of a VHDZ.  Previously a city applied to the Oregon Department of 
Housing and Community Services for approval of a Zone.  Now, cities and counties are 
authorized to designate a Zone by resolution or ordinance.  

The statute allows any local taxing district to “opt out” of the exemption.  Notice must be 
provided to other taxing jurisdictions whose boundaries overlap with the City, (county, school, 
educational services, community college, regional library system, soil and water conservation 
district, fire district) explaining the opportunity to opt out. 

Once a Zone is designated by the City, it is up to a property owner to file an application for 
“project certification.”  The determination of the eligibility for certification for an exemption 
and the percentage of exemption is made by the City and notice is provided to the county 
assessor’s office. 

The property tax exemption is provided for a 10-year period.  Following expiration of the 
exemption, the full assessed value of the property is returned to the tax rolls and the City and 
other taxing jurisdictions will collect property taxes on the total assessed value of the project. 

The fiscal impacts of the partial exemption are difficult to estimate.  The publicly available data 
from the Marion County Assessor’s Office does not allow one to calculate the assessed value of 
the improvements, due to the significant difference between the market value and the 
assessed value. 

Based on the current assessed valuations if all eight multi-story mixed use (or potential for 
mixed us if upper story is not currently occupied for residential purposes) buildings were 
certified under the program, the City’s annual loss in revenue would be approximately $1,000.  
This estimate reflects current assessed values.  Several of those properties have very low 
assessed value to market value ratios (<30%) and most of the buildings have potential for 
significant increase in value from renovation, in addition to the potential value from new 
construction. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff has the following recommendations: 

 The City Council should pursue designation of a Vertical Housing Development Zone.  
This would entail returning to the City Council with a resolution; notifying the other 
taxing jurisdictions impacted by the potential tax exemptions of the potential loss of tax 
revenue and their ability to opt out from the exemption; and designation of the 
boundaries of the Zone. 



 

City Council Staff Report 
Vertical Housing Development Zone  Page 3 

 If the City Council chooses to pursue designation of the VHDZ, then boundaries of the 
Zone should be the boundaries of the three downtown mixed use zones as designated 
in Chapter 17.16. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Direct Staff to begin the process of designating a Vertical Housing Development Zone.   

Move to direct the Staff begin the process of designating a Vertical Housing 
Development Zone, notifying the other local taxing jurisdictions, publishing notice of 
public hearing on the matter, and preparing a resolution or ordinance for consideration 
by the Council. 

2. Choose not to pursue a Vertical Housing Development Zone. 

No motion necessary. 

 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Cindy Chauran, Associate Accountant 
   Elizabeth Baldwin, Utility Billing Clerk 
 
DATE:   January 16, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  Monthly Finance Department Report 
  
 
 December 2017 November 2017 

 
Number of Bills Mailed 2,375 2,404 

Number of Bills Emailed 306 294 

Number of Bills on Auto-Pay 544 530 

Delinquent Notices Sent Out 550 532 

Courtesy Delinquent Notices Sent to Landlords 166 169 

Notified of Impending Shut-Off & Penalty 128 149 

Customers Issued Payment Extensions 18 20 

Customers with Interrupted Services Non-Payment 16 29 

Services Still Disconnected 0 1 

 
Number of Checks Issued 140 163 

Total Amount of Checks $197,401.95 $616,170.83 
 









 
Public Works Monthly Operating Report  Page 1 
January 16, 2018 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Lisa Meyer, Administrative Assistant 
 
DATE:   January 16, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Monthly Operating Report for December 2017 
      
KEY ACTIVITIES STATUS 
 
•  WWTP Facility Effluent flows:  60.15 million gallons were treated during December.  The 

highest flow was 2.86 million gallons on December 3rd and the lowest flow was 
1.42 million gallons on December 19th.  The average flow was 1.94 million 
gallons. Total rainfall for December was 4.39 inches.  

 
• WTP   Highest production day was 2,547,000 gallons on December 21, 2017. 

 
• Water System Installed 3 new meters and 3 radio readers. Replaced 5 meters. Raised a valve 

box on Wilco RD. Started a tracer study at Water Treatment Facility. The tracer 
study is information on chlorine contact time with the water during the time the 
water is pumped into the water distribution system. This information is one of 
the components used in reporting to the Drinking Water Health Division. Water 
Operators were watchful during the fuel spill on Highway 22 to continue to 
provide safe clean water.     

 
• Streets  Swept 84 curb miles and collected 27 cubic yards of material.  The Annual Yard 

Debris Collection took place at the City Shops on December 9th.  The City 
collected 65 cubic yards of material.  25 community volunteers raked and 
hauled away leaves for seniors. 317 lbs. of donated nonperishable food was 
given to the Stayton Community Food Bank along with $25 cash. 
 

 Parks  Volunteers: 
    Community Service:   Total # of Volunteers = 0, Total # of hours = 0 
    Life skills High School Students:   Total # of Volunteers = 0, Total # of hours = 0 
    Parks Board:  Total # of Volunteers = 0, Total # of hours = 0 
 
• Building Permits   

            Permit Type Issued SDC’s Paid 
New Single Family Dwelling -    2384 Deer Ave. 
Duplexes- 784 Fox St., 795 Rabbit Run St.  

3 $44,625.00 
 

Commercial Building Addition/Alter/Other 3 $0 
TOTAL 6 $44,625.00 

One (1) Residential SDC = $11,288.00 + $733.00 for Mill Creek SDC + Storm 
Water SDC $1990.00 or $2854.00 



 

 

CITY OF STAYTON 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: January 16, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Report of Activities for December, 2017 

  

Attended Oregon Chapter of American Planning Association annual Legal Issues Workshop 

Prepared application for Community Development Block Grant Housing Rehabilitation Grant 

Prepared Request for Proposals for update of Transportation System Plan 

Attended meeting regarding rail service in eastern Marion County 

Working with Public Works Department staff, improvements to the Geographic Information 
System continued 

 



 
Monthly Library Report  Page 1 of 1  
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Janna Moser - Library Director 
 
DATE:   January 16, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  December Library report 
  
 
 
In December, we hosted Oregon author Zoe Burke. She is the author of the Annabelle Starkey 
mysteries and has written several children’s books. She shared her writing process and also the 
story of how she came to write for both audiences.   
 
Stephanie held two DIY Craftshop programs. The library provided the supplies to decorate ugly 
holiday sweaters. Adults and teens also made peppermint scrub, jar mixes and homemade gift 
tags that could be given as last minute gifts.  
 
Teens at our Lost Mummy Escape Party solved puzzles to find out if they could escape being 
trapped in an ancient Egyptian tomb. At our Teen Chef event, they made easy treats that could 
be given as holiday gifts.  
 
During the school holiday break, we had three afternoons of family movies. We showed 
Despicable Me 3, Cars 3, and Captain Underpants. Casle held her annual Card Making 
Extravaganza to encourage children and families to come make thank you cards.  
 
 
Upcoming events to mark on your calendars: 

● Teen Chef: Mug Meals – January 17 at 4:00pm 
● Author visit: Steve Arndt – January 18 at 7:00pm 
● Little Bits Coding – January 25 at 4:00pm 
● Brews, Bites and Books - January 27 at 7:00pm 

 



TOTAL CHECKOUTS 12,761 12,616 11,204 11,545 11,029 10,705 69,860 126,579

Self check out 4,086 4,177 3,703 3,688 3,427 3,472 22,553 39,895

Library2Go (ebooks +) 910 972 947 970 1022 1,069 5,890 9,917

Non-resident cards             $89.50 $130.00 $177.00 $175.00 $142.00 $105.00 $818.50 $2,180.20

Fines: overdue & lost books $1,121.79 $1,917.07 $1,235.71 $600.29 $875.99 $755.19 $6,506.04 $10,821.37

Room fees                        -$31.25 $25.00 $115.00 $90.00 $197.00 $60.00 $455.75 $1,332.00

TOTAL $7,780.29 $14,333.57

In-Person, by phone and computer help 584 364 352 356 360 404 2,420 6,035

NEW PATRON CARDS 65 89 58 48 43 57 360 796

INTERNET USE 938 1,122 1,066 1,116 880 907 6,029 11,398

Children & adults at Children's Programs 761 58 427 414 469 439 2,568 7,229

Teens 17 20 32 35 30 34 168 150

Adults 57 31 43 47 28 34 240 764

Outreach 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,054

TOTAL 2,976 12,197

MEETING ROOM ATTENDANCE 33 54 91 158 155 110 601 1,621

PATRON VISITS 7,645 7,690 6,285 6,585 5,480 5,567 39,252 79,782

VOLUNTEER HOURS 254 210 170 211 200 187 1,231 2,392

2017-2018 Monthly Library  Statistics

July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June 2017-18 YTD 2016-17 YTD

OTHER CIRCULATION SERVICES

INCOME RECEIVED

REFERENCE QUESTIONS

PROGRAM ATTENDANCE




